NNJ08221364R

Amendment 1


The purpose of this Amendment 1 is to:

1) Respond to questions #161-#178 submitted in response to the Final RFP, beginning on page 5 of this Amendment 1.  
2) Update Standard Form 33, Block 2, Contract Number from NNJ08HD08C to NNJ09HD46C;
3) Update Section C:
a. Cover Page to remove NASA Sensitive But Unclassified statement
b. Update contractor responsibilities in the following areas:
i. 2.6, Security, Paragraph 2 now reads “The Contractor shall provide security engineering of secure facilities through the implementation of and adherence to NASA and Department of Defense (DoD) regulations governing national security and national resource protection of communications security (COMSEC) equipment.”
ii. 2.15.1, Government Property, Paragraph 2 now reads “The Contractor shall utilize the Government’s property tracking system  for FDOC property identified in Attachment J-9 Parts 1 and 2.  The Contractor shall provide custodians to input and manage data in the Government’s property tracking system for property provided under this contract.  The Contractor shall track and be accountable for FDOC Government property identified in Attachment J-8 Parts 1 and 2, and all contractor-acquired Government property with its own tracking system.  The Contractor shall provide reports and inventories in accordance with Property Financial Reporting (FDOC-DRD-0014).”  
iii. 3.2.11.9, Metrics/Data and Reports now reads “The Contractor shall bring a status of active mitigation plans to the UACB, utilizing the Technical Metrics Plan and Reports (DRD-FDOC-0007), for results less than the best score possible in the Customer Satisfaction Survey and Reports (DRD-FDOC-0058).”

iv. 3.3.6, Communications Security (COMSEC), Paragraph 7 now reads “The Contractor shall provide COMSEC engineering expertise for day-to-day maintenance and operations and for the development of future COMSEC systems as required by NASA.”
c. Update page headers, release date, and version number accordingly

4) Update Section F:

a. Update Clause F.8, INDEFINITE-DELIVERY INDEFINITE-QUANTITY (IDIQ) - LIMITATIONS (Applies only to Sections 3.1.11, 3.2.5, and 3.2.7) (CLIN 003) to change the SOW section reference from 3.2.6 to 3.2.5;
b. Update Clause F.10, OPTION FOR THE INCREMENTAL INCREASE OF EFFORT (CLIN 005) to change the value of maximum hours from 982,080 to 1,473,120;
5) Update Section I:
a. Clause I.1, LISTING OF CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
i. The following FAR clauses are updated to the April 2008 version:
1. 52.204-7, CENTRAL CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION
2. 52.211-15, DEFENSE PRIORITY AND ALLOCATION REQUIREMENTS
3. 52.219-9, SMALL BUSINESS SUBCONTRACTING PLAN (ALT II) (OCT 2001)
4. 52.219-25, SMALL DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS PARTICIPATION PROGRAM-DISADVANTAGED STATUS AND REPORTING
ii. Add FAR Clause 52.223-17, AFFIRMATIVE PROCUREMENT OF EPA DESIGNATED ITEMS IN SERVICE AND CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
iii. Update FAR Clause 52.246-24, LIMITATION OF LIABILITY – HIGH-VALUE ITEMS to include the following list of applicable high-value items:
(1) Consolidated Data Select Switch (CDSS) for Mission Control Center – Houston (MCC-H)

(2) Mission Data Storage Complex (MDSC) for Mission Control Center – Houston (MCC-H)

(3) MDSC for Houston Support Room (HSR)

(4) Red/Green/Blue (RGB) Virtual Storage Manager (VSM) Mission Control Center – Houston (MCC-H)

(5) Complementary Metal Oxide Semi-conductor (CMOS) Central Processing Unit (CPU) for Software Production Facility (SPF)

(6) VSM-3B for Software Production Facility (SPF)

(7) Tape Silo SL8500 for Software Production Facility (SPF)

b. Replace Clause I.7, ESTIMATE OF PERCENTAGE OF RECOVERED MATERIAL CONTENT FOR EPA-DESIGNATED PRODUCTS in its entirety with the updated May 2008 version;
6) Update Section J:
a. Attachment J-8, Off-Site Property and Material Listing Part 1

i. FDOC-USA Spares-Parts List tab added

b. Attachment J-8, Off-Site Property and Material Listing Part 2

i. FDOC-USA Spares-Parts List tab added

c. Attachment J-9, JSC on-Site Installation Accountable Property Part 1

i. FDOC-MSOC Property List tab

1. Cost Column added

ii. FDOC-USA LSF Kitting tab added

iii. FDOC-USA Spares-Parts List tab added

d. Attachment J-17, Data Requirements Description (DRD) Sheets
i. Remove NASA Sensitive But Unclassified statement on Page 2
ii. Update DRD-FDOC-0030, Block 7, to read SOW 2.6 and 3.3.6
e. Attachment J-20, Labor Rate Tables

i. Include ‘Senior Engineer Specialist’ on the PRE-ESTABLISHED LOADED LABOR RATES (IDIQ) table,
ii. Add an asterisk and related statement of ‘The offeror may list only 1 rate, if applicable’ to ‘Rate 2’ on the PRE-ESTABLISHED LOADED LABOR RATES (LOE) table

iii. Add the PRE-ESTABLISHED LOADED LABOR RATES (LOE FLEX OPTION) table in its entirety

f. Attachment J-21, Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) is updated to include additional SOW References.
7) Update Section K, FAR Clause 52.223-4, RECOVERED MATERIAL CERTIFICATION, to the May 2008 version;
8) Update Section L:
a. Update FAR Clause 52.211-14 to the April 2008 version, which includes a title change to NOTICE OF PRIORITY RATING FOR NATIONAL DEFENSE, EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS, AND ENERGY PROGRAM USE
b. Update Clause L.5, REQUIREMENTS FOR COST OR PRICING DATA OR INFORMATION OTHER THAN COST OR PRICING DATA, to reference Provision L.19, Instructions to Offerors, in (b)(1)
c. Update Clause L.19, INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORS
i. Update Table 4A, IDIQ/Cost Reimbursable NLR Estimate in its entirety
ii. Update Technical Workbook Instructions, 2. The Technical Resources Template Completion Form (TRT) from referencing ‘SOW to referencing ‘WBS’
iii. Update MA2 Total Compensation Plan: final paragraph is updated to read “Your total compensation plan must correspond with the data provided on Total Compensation Templates submitted in Volume III, Cost/Price.”
iv. Deleted all references to Volume I Appendix D throughout.

d. Update Attachment L-7, Technical Resources Templates.xls, CF(Baseline)-TRST Tab, cells E7, H7, K7, and N7 from referencing Volume II to referencing    Volume I;
9) Update Clause M.3, Mission Suitability Factor: Paragraph MA2 is changed to read “Total Compensation Plan - The offeror will be evaluated on the soundness and feasibility of the total compensation plan.  Information submitted in the Total Compensation Templates in Volume III, Cost/Price will be evaluated in addition to the supplied narrative.”
Please note the following uploaded documents:

Standard Form 33;
Section C, uploaded in its entirety;

RFP Amendment 1 Clause Changes (only those clauses changed in Sections F, I, K, L, and M have been included – the entire sections have not been included) 

Please note that all changes in Sections C, F, I, K, L, and M are vertically bar marked.
161. What is the WBS correlation/mapping for the following SOW Paragraphs: 2.13, 3.2, 3.2.1.11, 3.2.2.11, 3.2.2.11, 3.2.3.11, 3.2.3.11, 3.2.4.11, 3.2.4.11, 3.2.5.11, 3.2.6.11, 3.2.6.11, 3.2.6.6, 3.2.7.11, 3.2.7.11, 3.2.8.11, 3.2.8.11, 3.2.9.11, 3.2.9.11, 3.2.9.2, 3.2.9.2, 3.2.10.11, 3.2.10.11, 3.2.10.2, 3.2.10.2, 3.2.11.10,.2.11.11, 3.2.11.11, 3.2.11.4, 3.2.11.6, 3.2.11.7, 3.2.11.8?

Answer:  The mapping has been updated for these SOW paragraphs in Amendment 1.

162. Why is SOW 2.6 not mapped to a LOE WBS to cover the COMSEC tasks?

Answer:  The work under SOW 2.6 includes security engineering, which is a baseline task and is not limited to COMSEC.  Therefore, SOW 2.6 is not mapped to an LOE WBS element.  Amendment 1 reflects a clarification in SOW section 2.6 to remove maintenance and operations of COMSEC, which is covered by SOW section 3.3.6 COMSEC.


163. J-9 Part 2 contains a statement "This list is intentionally left blank".  Is there onsite "Non-replaceable" government property that should be listed in this file?

Answer:  No items are identified as applicable to J-9 Part 2.
164. J-8 Part 1, J-9 Part 1, and J-10 indicate that several of the currently in place licenses and maintenance agreements are expected to expire before the start of the FDOC (Jan 01, 2009).  Will the incumbent contractors extend/renew these licenses and maintenance agreements?  If so, what will be the new expiration date for these licenses and maintenance agreements?  If extended beyond the planned start of the FDOC (Jan 01, 2009), will the government require that those licenses and agreements be transferable to the winning contractor?

Answer:  The current contractor will renew licenses that will expire prior to the end of the calendar year.  For proposal purposes, assume one-year extensions to each.  All licenses are transferable.
165. Reference Sec. L, Page L-13 through L-14.  Solicitation Provision NFS 1852.245-80 "Government Property Management Information (Sep 2007) Paragraph (h) states that the property listed at 1852.245-81 is provided "as is".  FAR 52.245-1 (d)(2)(iii) states that "Any repairs, replacement, and/or refurbishment shall be at the Contractor's expense".  Please clarify what is meant by "Contractor Expense" as it relates to the Terms of a Cost Re-imbursement Contract.  

Answer:  If the CO determines that the charge is allowable under the FAR, the contractor will charge the replacement in accordance with their disclosure statement submitted as part of their proposal.  
166. Will NASA provide a listing of all high value items by line item to be included in the contract pursuant to FAR 52.246-24 "Limitation of Liability - High Value Items" and its prescription?

Recommend NASA also include FAR 52.246-23 "Limitation of Liability (FEB 1997)" consistent with performance called for, which will include delivery of low value items.

Answer:  Section I Clause 52.246-24, LIMITATION OF LIABILITY – HIGH-VALUE ITEMS (FEB 1997)(ALT 1)(APR 1984), has been updated by Amendment 1 to list the seven high-value items on FDOC.  Additional items may be specified later via IDIQ Delivery Orders.

FAR 52.246-23, LIMITATION OF LIABILITY (FEB 1997), is listed in Section I by reference (see Final RFP, issued May 9, 2008).

167. The listing of materials and equipment provided in attachment J-8 does not currently contain the information required under NFS 1852.245-79.  Please clarify if it is expected for the successful offeror to complete this during contract performance or is it to be provided and included in attachment J-8 at the time of contract award.

Answer:  During phase-in, the current contractors shall transfer the items to the new contract and identify items as potential artifacts and provide a brief description of their use.
(See FDOC website, Answers to Questions, number 81.)

168. Final RFP, Section L, paragraph L.5 Requirements for Cost or Pricing Data or Information Other than Cost or Pricing Data (b) (1), page L-8, references L.17 Instructions for Preparation of Cost Proposal when actually the Final RFP L.17 is titled List of Available Government Property.   Please confirm this is the correct reference.  Did the government intend to reference paragraph L.19 Instructions to the Offerors? 

Answer:  The correct reference is, “See Instructions for Preparation of Cost Proposal in Provision L.19 Instructions to Offerors.”  This update has been reflected in Amendment 1.
169. Final RFP, Section L, paragraph L.19 Instructions to the Offerors, Appendix A, Table 4 IDIQ-Sample Matrix (Productive) Hours, page L-34 states a Standard Labor Category (SLC) for a Senior Engineer Specialist that is not in Attachment J-20 – Labor Rate Tables on page J-20.2, Pre-Established Loaded Labor Rates (IDIQ).  

Please clarify if this SLC should be included in the J-20 IDIQ Labor Rates table, or removed from the Table 4 IDIQ-Sample Matrix (Productive) Hours. 

Answer:  Reference page L-34 – L35, Table 4 *IDIQ Sample Matrix (Productive Hours).  The Standard Labor Categories, which include a Senior Engineer Specialist, provided in Table 4 are correct.  Attachment J-20 Pre-Established Loaded Labor Rates (IDIQ) Table has been updated in Amendment 1 to include the Standard Labor Category of Senior Engineer Specialist.  

170. Final RFP, Section L, paragraph L.19 Instructions to the Offerors, Appendix A, Table 3 – Level of Effort ICE (Productive) Hours, page L-34, states Standard Labor Categories (SLC’s) that are different than the SLC’s in Attachment J-20 – Labor Rate Tables, page J-20.3, Pre-Established Loaded Labor Rates (LOE).  

Please identify which table identifies the correct SLC’s and hours?

Answer:  Reference page L-34, Table 3, Level of Effort ICE (Productive Hours).  The Standard Labor Categories that are provided in Table 3 are correct.  Attachment J-20 Pre-Established Loaded Labor Rates (LOE) Table has been updated in Amendment 1.
171. Final RFP, Section L, paragraph L.19 Instructions to Offers, Technical Resources Cost Templates Instructions, item (2) The Technical Resources Template Completions Form (TRT), page L-47, states that the template is required to summarize and sort by SOW task all proposal labor resources, however the L-7 TRT templates (L-7-C - L-7-G) are organized by WBS.  Did the government intend for the TRT templates to be summarized by SOW or by WBS?

Also in this same L-7 template file the Technical Resources Summary Template (TRST) (L-7-B), has a reference in the column title to Volume II, Past Performance, in columns E, H, K and N.  Please clarify if this volume reference is correct.

Answer:  The TRT template is required to summarize and sort all proposed labor resources by WBS and has been updated in Amendment 1.
The correct reference for columns E, H, K, and N is Volume I, Mission Suitability.  Tab CF (Baseline) TRST (L-7-B) has been updated in Amendment 1.

172. Final RFP, Clause G.14, page G-12. "Contract clause G.14 (b) request clarification in last sentence as to what is meant by contractor expense.  Should the contractor expect that these costs are allowable under the contract but not subject to an equitable adjustment for restoration of damaged property pursuit to this clause?

Answer:  For the cost to be allowable under the contract, the C.O. must first make a determination that the charge is allowable under the FAR.  The contractor would then charge the replacement in accordance with their disclosure statement submitted as part of their proposal.

173. RFP Indicates: IDIQ – Sample Matrix (Productive) Hours are level loaded across the base and option periods.  CY1 has not been adjusted to represent a 9-month period as other tables in that section.  Recommendation: Adjust CY1 estimates in Table 4. to reflect 9 month period.

Answer:  The IDIQ sample matrix hours on the ISCT were provided by the Government to establish a common baseline to evaluate each offeror’s direct and indirect rates only. The IDIQ Sample Matrix hours must not be construed as the actual hours of IDIQ work that the contractor will be directed to perform for any contract year.  The government does not intend to change the hours and non-labor resources on the ISCT.  
174. RFP Indicates: FDOC IDIQ Summary Cost Template (ISCT).  Question: The RFP instructions do not state whether the Dev/Mod Material and Travel line items should include indirect costs such as material handling and G&A. Should the Dev/Mod Material and Travel include direct costs or not?
Answer:  The IDIQ Non-Labor Resources (NLR) estimate provided on the FDOC IDIQ ISCT does not include application of any indirect expenses such as material handling or general and administrative expenses, nor does it include fee.  Any additional cost elements proposed by the offeror in relation to the NLRs shall be proposed in a manner that is consistent with its disclosed and approved estimating and accounting practices.  

175. RFP Indicates: L.19 Table 4A. IDIQ/Cost Reimbursable NLR Estimate (Matrix) ($ in thousands).  Comment: The non-labor estimates provided in Table 4A do not match the non-labor values shown on the FDOC IDIQ Summary Cost Template (ISCT).  We assume the Table 4A numbers are correct and the ISCT form should be updated to reflect the Table 4A values.

Answer: Table 4A, IDIQ Non-Labor Resources estimate has been updated in Amendment 1.
176. RFP Indicates:  SOW 3.2.11.9:  The Contractor shall bring a status of active mitigation plans to the individual UACBs, …  Comment: The draft RFP indicates that the UACB was a singular entity. This requirement implies that there will be more than one UACB. If so, can NASA clarify things such as roles and responsibilities, scope, and hierarchy, if applicable.

Answer:  Amendment 1 updates the phrase to, “The Contractor shall bring a status of active mitigation plans to the UACB utilizing the Technical Metrics Plan and Reports (DRD-FDOC-0007), for results less than the best score possible in the Customer Satisfaction Survey and Reports (DRD-FDOC-0058).”
177. RFP Indicates: Page L-37, Appendix D. Total Compensation   The offer shall submit the completed templates provided in Attachment L-8, Other Template.   Comment: The FDOC Total Compensation Templates, FDOC TC(a), FDOC TC(b), and FDOC TC(c) require information that is normally only provided in the Cost Volume. Recommend that the instructions to the offerors be revised to allow submission of these templates in the Cost Volume in place of Volume I, Attachment D.

Answer:  MA2 Total Compensation has been updated in Amendment 1 as follows:  “Your total compensation plan must correspond with the data provided on Total Compensation Templates submitted in Volume III, Cost/Price.”  All references to Appendix D have been deleted from Sections L and M of the RFP.  The offeror shall complete and submit Attachment L-8 Other Template in accordance with the instructions for Volume III, Cost/Price in Provision L.19 Instructions to Offerors.
178. RFP Clause F.8 INDEFINITE-DELIVERY INDEFINITE-QUANTITY (IDIQ) - LIMITATIONS (Applies only to Sections 3.1.11, 3.2.6, and 3.2.7) (CLIN 003); did the Government intend to reference 3.2.5 CxTF Facilities Support instead of SOW 3.2.6 SPF Facilities Support in RFP Clause F.8?

Answer:  Amendment 1 contains an update to Clause F.8 INDEFINITE-DELIVERY INDEFINITE-QUANTITY (IDIQ) - LIMITATIONS (Applies only to Sections 3.1.11, 3.2.5, and 3.2.7) (CLIN 003) to change the SOW section reference from 3.2.6 to 3.2.5.
8

